2000

Haroldeane M. O\'Brien v. Alvin L. Iverson and Judith N. Iverson : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF KIND OF CASE

This is a divorce action wherein the issue of a property settlement is before the Court.

DISPOSITION ON LOWER COURT

The Fifth Judicial District Court for Washington County, Utah, by Judgment dated July 29, 1975 and filed September 18, 1975 awarded to Defendant and Respondent all of the parties' home property located

in St. George, Utah as his sole and separate property. From this award, the Plaintiff and Appellant appeals to the above entitled Court.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Plaintiff and Appellant seeks a reversal of the Lower Court and an order of the Utah Supreme Court awarding to her an equitable share of the parties' home property.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The parties hereto intermarried at Reno, Nevada on January 16, 1945 (R.36). Subsequent to said marriage, they purchased certain real property and constructed a home through their joint efforts in St. George, Utah, (R.36, T.16, 17). During the course of the parties marriage they had three children (R. 1, T. 6). In addition, the Plaintiff and Appellant, during the course of the marriage, not only took care of her marital duties, but aided the Defendant and Respondent in his business and in earning the family's income. (T.7, 9, 10, 11, 13,). When the parties constructed their home, the Plaintiff and Appellant aided in the construction of said home. (T 10 The work the parties did to earn a living after their marriage and upon the commencement of their marital arrangement consisted of various and sundry construction work and herding sheep. (T. 7, T. 8, T. 9, T. 11.)). In this regard, the Plaintiff and Appellant, although being a woman, actually physically helped in the operation of the construction business and the herding of the sheep. As a result, she contributed certain services to the marital arrangement in excess of

those ordinarily expected of a housewife.

Subsequent to the entering into of the marital arrangement between the parties and the construction of their home, and the birth of the three children of the parties, certain difficulties developed between the parties and on August 13, 1954 a Complaint requesting among other things, a Decree of Divorce was filed by the Plaintiff and Appellant in the District Court for Washington County, Utah. (R. 37) Subsequent thereto, and by Interlocutory Decree of Divorce dated and filed the 10th day of December, 1954 the bonds of matrimony between the parties were dissolved. (R.45). In that regard, the Defendant and Appellant Alvin L. Iverson was awarded the care, custody and control of the minor children of the parties subject to reasonable visitation rights on the part of the Plaintiff and Appellant and also was awarded the use and occupancy of the home of the parties. (R.44,45) In that regard, the Court's attention is called to the fact that the District Court for Washington County, specifically retained jurisdiction over the parties and the custody of the children and the disposition of their property and the support of the Plaintiff and Appellant. (R. 45). No disposition was made in the Interlocutory Decree of Divorce regarding an award to either party of the home property although, the Defendant and Respondent was given the use of the same for purposes of raising the children (R. 45). At the time of the divorce, the home property was worth \$18,000.00 (T. 16) and there was an outstanding loan owing thereon of approximately \$3,000.00 (T. 15) leaving an equity in the property belonging to the parties of approximately \$15,000.00.

Subsequent to the entry of the Decree of Divorce, the parties separated, and the Defendant and Respondent raised the parties' children up to the age of majority (T. 19). The Plaintiff and Appellant did contribute some support and money to the children (T.19) and visited with the children (T.20), however it is admitted that the children, were in fact, raised to the age of majority by the Defendant and Respondent.

Subsequent to the children obtaining the age of majority, issues were joined between the parties as to the disposition of the home property, as the same had not been previously disposed of by the Court, and the matter was tried before the Fifth Judicial District Court for Washington County, Honorable J. Harlan Burns, presiding on June 26, 1975, and subsequent to the trial, the trial Court entered its Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and ordered Judgment in accordance therewith decreeing the home property described as the East one-half of Lots 6 and 7, Block 20, Plat "B", St. George City Survey as beonging in full to the Defendant and Respondent with no rights in the Plaintiff and Appellant (R.22 through 29). From this Judgment, the Plaintiff and Appellant appeals.

ARGUMENT

POINT I.

THE LOWER COURT ERRED IN NOT AWARDING TO THE PLAINTIFF AND APPELLANT A PORTION OF THE PARTIES' HOME PROPERTY.

As this Court is well aware, Section 30-3-5, Utah Code Annotated, 1953 as amended is the statutory authority governing property awards between parties involved in a divorce. The test in

to fact situation before it, the Courts have been allowed "broad discretion" by the Utah Supreme Court. Watts v. Watts, (1968), 21 Utah 2d 137, 442 P. 2d 30. On the other hand, and while the Courts are allowed to look to the fact situation in making an appropriate split between the parties, a general formula has developed over the years wherein it is considered that one-third of the property involved is usually felt to be a fair proportion to be given to the wife in the absence of other circumstances. Woolley v. Woolley (1948) 113 Utah 391, 195P. 2d 743. The one-third formula is not absolute, however, and awards vary to a great extent, depending upon the fact situation of the parties. Dubois v. Dubois (1973) 29 Utah 2d 75, 504 P.2d 1380. In the Dubois case the Court allowed to the wife 60% of the estate. Dahlberg v. Dahlberg (1930) 77Utah 157, 292 P. 2d 214 the wife received 50% of the marital property. Recognizing that the Courts are faced with a problem of settling the differences between parties involved in a divorce, it appears that the best test so far developed is that of "justice and equity". Wilson v. Wilson (1956), 5 Utah 2d 79, 296 P. 2d 977.

In the case before the Court, the parties lived together for nine years and had three children as the issue of the marriage. During the time of the marriage, they accumulated a home, two cars, household furniture and fixtures, and various and sundry personal property. The home of the parties, was by far, the only property accumulated by them of any real value. The record shows that the accumulation of the home took place through the efforts of both parties, that both parties contributed financially to the marriage relationship

as well as to the construction of the home. In that regard, the Court's attention is called to the fact that the parties married immediately after the second world war, that they had financial difficulties and as a result, both parties had to contribute financially to the marriage, and that the Plaintiff and Appellant, the wife, actually physically worked to help support the family. In that regard, this work consisted of participation in heavy construction work and the herding of sheep. Certainly such activities are ordinarily considered to be above and beyond the call of duty, especially the participating in heavy construction work. There can be no doubt therefore, that the Plaintiff and Appellant did meet her marital duties and probably above and beyond the call of duty.

It is true that the Defendant and Respondent took over the responsibility of supporting and raising the three children of the parties, subsequent to the parties separation. On the other hand, this ordinarily is a father's duty and the fact that custody of the children was not awarded to the Plaintiff and Appellant does not necessarily mean that she, in any way, forsook her duties.

In addition, it is obvious from the original Decree of Divorce that the District Judge at that time did not intend to adjudicate the rights of the parties in the home property, and intended that this be adjudicated at a later date. As a result, he made no permanent award of the home property and did not award it to either party or to interest to either party.

It seems to the Plaintiff and Appellant that she is entitled to at least something out of the property that she helped accumulate

While it may be proper to base this award upon the equity the parties had in the home at the time of the divorce, and upon the values of the home at the time of the divorce, it still seems appropriate that she be given at least something.

CONCLUSION

It is respectfully submitted that the decision of the Lower Court should be reversed, and that the Plaintiff and Appellant should be awarded a fair share of the home property of the parties, at least as the equity stood at the time of the parties' divorce, and that such share should not be less than one-third of the equity of the parties.