2001

## Iverson v. O'Brien : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF THE KIND OF CASE

This is an action brought by Plaintiff and Respondent, Fred P. Adams (hereinafter "ADAMS") who was the purchaser of a boat from Deseret Manufacturing Corporation (hereinafter "DESERET") a now bankrupt borrower of Defendant and Appellant, First State Bank (hereinafter "BANK") which held a Financing Statement filed with the Secretary of State and other documents under the Uniform Commercial Code securing Bank's loan to Deseret. The dispute concerns validity of the Financing Statement. Adams demands damages for the Bank's "wrongful taking" and withholding of possession of the boat.

### DISPOSITION IN THE LOWER COURT

The Trial Court granted a Summary Judgment to Adams holding that a one-digit error in the serial number of the boat was fatally defective in the Financing Statement; that the Bank had no security interest in the boat; and that the Bank was liable in damages to Adams for "wrongful taking" of it.

### RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

On a Petition under Rule 72(b), Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, this Court granted this Interlocutory Appeal and the Bank now asks for a reversal of the Trial Court's Summary Judgment which held the Bank's Financing Statement void.

### STATEMENT OF FACTS

The boat in dispute was owned, having been manufactured by Deseret, a Defendant in the original action which does not appeal but is now bankrupt (R.68-70). Deseret gave the Bank a Security Agreement (R.39) and a Financing Statement which was filed with the Utah Secretary of State August 5, 1974 (R.40). The Financing Statement described a Seaflite 2200 Offshore #DMFA0082M-75L (R.39-40).

The actual number appearing on the boat is DMFA0082M-74-L (R.104).

However, the Financing Statement described the engine number of the boat with precise accuracy, viz: WLD-VS-L16-

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF UTAH

-----

FRED P. ADAMS,	)	
	:	
<i>Plaintiff-Respondent,</i>	)	
	:	
vs.	:	CASE NO. 14281
	:	
FIRST STATE BANK,	)	
	:	
	:	
<i>Defendant-Appellant.</i>	)	

-----

APPELLANT'S BRIEF

-----

STATEMENT OF THE KIND OF CASE

This is an action brought by Plaintiff and Respondent, Fred P. Adams (hereinafter "ADAMS") who was the purchaser of a boat from Deseret Manufacturing Corporation (hereinafter "DESERET") a now bankrupt borrower of Defendant and Appellant, First State Bank (hereinafter "BANK") which held a Financing Statement filed with the Secretary of State and other documents under the Uniform Commercial Code securing Bank's loan to Deseret. The dispute concerns validity of the Financing Statement. Adams demands damages for the Bank's "wrongful taking" and withholding of possession of the boat.

#### DISPOSITION IN THE LOWER COURT

The Trial Court granted a Summary Judgment to Adams holding that a one-digit error in the serial number of the boat was fatally defective in the Financing Statement; that the Bank had no security interest in the boat; and that the Bank was liable in damages to Adams for "wrongful taking" of it.

#### RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

On a Petition under Rule 72(b), Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, this Court granted this Interlocutory Appeal and the Bank now asks for a reversal of the Trial Court's Summary Judgment which held the Bank's Financing Statement void.

#### STATEMENT OF FACTS

The boat in dispute was owned, having been manufactured by Deseret, a Defendant in the original action which does not appeal but is now bankrupt (R.68-70). Deseret gave the Bank a Security Agreement (R.39) and a Financing Statement which was filed with the Utah Secretary of State August 5, 1974 (R.40). The Financing Statement described a Seaflite 2200 Offshore #DMFA0082M-75L (R.39-40).

The actual number appearing on the boat is DMFA0082M-74-L (R.104).

However, the Financing Statement described the engine number of the boat with precise accuracy, viz: WLD-VS-L16-



The make of the boat is "Seaflite" as appears in both the Financing Statement and on the boat and the manufacture of the engine is Waukesha as appears on the Financing Statement (R.40) and on the boat (R.103).

Adams did business as the sole proprietor of "FASCO" (apparently a contraction of his name) and was a trade supplier of Deseret, selling them materials for the construction of boats (R.2). Deseret became substantially indebted to Adams, doing business as FASCO, and attempted to pay him with checks that did not clear the bank (R.3).

Some time after August 8, 1974, and considerably after the bank had filed its Financing Statement, Deseret issued an invoice to "FASCO" for the boat in question as well as other boats (R.103). The deposition of Adams was taken and he could not produce any invoice for the boat in question but did exhibit the one appearing at R.103 saying that the invoice on the boat in question was "like this" and admitting that the invoice on the boat in question would have been issued to him (as "FASCO") at even a later date than August 8, 1974 (Deposition of Fred Adams, p.18).

Adams never made any investigation with the Secretary of State to determine whether there was a Financing Statement on the boat until after he had been advised that

First State Bank (Manti Branch) had a lien on the boat (Adams Deposition p.28, 29).

The invoice at R.103 clearly indicates that the consideration which Adams or "FASCO" paid was an *antecedent indebtedness* but that is not an issue before this Court since the Trial Court reserved as an issue of fact and law whether or not Adams was a buyer in the ordinary course of business or acquired the boat because of an antecedent debt (R.90). That reserved issue became naturally immaterial as far as the Trial Court was concerned since he found the one-digit error to be a jurisdictional and fatal defect nullifying entirely the Bank's security interest - irrespective of the "ordinary course of business" rule.

The boat was received by Adams long after the Financing Statement was filed (Adams Deposition p.18).

Adams took delivery of several boats from Deseret and received "roughly \$12,000.00 in cash" from sale of boats other than the one in question here which Adams retained for his own use (Adams Deposition p.31).

There is one important direct conflict in the evidence and therefore an issue of fact precluding summary judgment for Adams, as two witnesses whose depositions were published

and reviewed by the Trial Court in the Summary Judgment proceeding testified that both of the witnesses advised Adams that First State Bank had a lien on the boat (Deposition of Lynn Nuffer, p.14, lines 6 and 7; p.70, lines 20-25; Deposition of Steven Tapp, p.11, lines 8-10).

When the Bank confronted officers of Deseret about the wrongful disposal of the Bank's security, Deseret's principal officers and stockholders, Lynn Nuffer and Steven Tapp, called First State Bank and asked if they should pick up one boat and return it to their place of business. They were instructed by the Bank to return the Bank's security (Deposition of Steven Tapp, p.18,19; Deposition of Lynn Nuffer, p.33-35). The boat was picked up by Nuffer and Tapp and not by the Bank (Deposition of Lynn Nuffer, p.34 and 35).

[It should be noted parenthetically here that a secured party has the statutory right to require the debtor to assemble the collateral and make it available to the secured party at a place to be designated by the secured party (70A-9-503) after default.]

First State Bank had taken judgment against Deseret Manufacturing (R.11) and the note was in default (R.64).

## A R G U M E N T

### POINT I

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN RULING THAT  
A ONE-DIGIT ERROR IN A FILED FINAN-  
CING STATEMENT UNDER THE UNIFORM COM-  
MERCIAL CODE WAS FATALLY DEFECTIVE

The decision of the Trial Court that a one-digit error is a fatal defect is clearly erroneous under the Uniform Commercial Code adopted by Utah effective January 1, 1966.

That proposition is unequivocally established by every case decided under the UCC which has considered the issue. In a well-reasoned and authoritative decision, the Supreme Court of Massachusetts in *Still Associates, Inc. vs. Murphy*, 267 NE2d 217 carefully reviewed all decisions of all other jurisdictions to rule upon the question under the Uniform Commercial Code and its conclusion was to overrule one of its prior decisions of long standing handed down under the old "chattel mortgage" law, a field of legislation and case law which now, the Massachusetts Court holds, is superseded entirely by the Uniform Commercial Code.

In *Still Associates* the facts are virtually the same as here. The Court stated that "the Defendant [buyer of the personal property under the code filing] had no actual notice and acted in good faith". The issue in question in this Massachusetts case was a one-digit error in the Financing

Statement description of a motor vehicle.

The unanimous opinion in *Still Associates* held:

Notice Filing [The central filing provided by the Uniform Commercial Code] is a method of protecting security interests which at the same time would give subsequent potential creditors and other interested persons information and procedures adequate to enable the ascertainment of the facts they needed to know.

The Court then recites its own decision of *National Cash Register vs. Reston*, 346 Mass.255, 267; 197 NE2d 471.

The Court held that under the "broad purposes of the Act [the UCC]" validity of the Financing Statement was not affected by the mistake in the last digit of the serial number.

The Massachusetts Supreme Court goes on to say:

Courts in other jurisdictions have held much less to be sufficient: *General Motors Acceptance Corp. vs. Terra Costa Corp.*, 161 NYLS 941 (holding that the term "motor vehicle" was sufficient). Given a sufficient description, the mere fact of an erroneous serial number following it cannot be held to be "seriously misleading". *Bank of North America vs. Bank of Nutley*, 94 NJ SUPR. 220-227, 227 Atl.2d A2d 535.

The Massachusetts Court had this to say concerning the holdings under the Uniform Commercial Code:

It has been held that the requirement of listing by serial number had been taken away by the Uniform Commercial Code and, in fact, a description of automobiles as being passenger and commercial automobiles

financed by a bank is sufficient (quoting *Girard Trust Corn Exchange Bank vs. Warren Leppley Ford Co.*, 13 PA D&C2d 119).

The Intermediate Court of Appeals had held the Financing Statement fatally defective because of the one-digit error the same as the Trial Court has done here. The Intermediate Court of Appeals had relied upon a 1924 decision of Massachusetts, *Wise vs. Kennedy*, 248 Mass. 83, 142 NE 745, which had held:

It is common knowledge \* \* \* that cars of any number of the makers can be distinguished with reasonable certainty for another automobile of the same class only by the number by which each car is designated.

Although *Wise vs. Kennedy* had been followed extensively in Massachusetts the Court of that state in *Still Associates* held that:

It is implicit in the holding that *Wise vs. Kennedy* is no longer to be followed \* \* \* The requirement of a description of collateral is evidentiary. The test of sufficiency of a description laid down by Code Section 9-402(5) [our 70A-9-405(5)] is that the description do the job assigned to it - that it makes possible by identification of the thing described. Under this rule Courts should refuse to allow the holdings often found in older chattel mortgage cases, that descriptions are insufficient unless they are of the most exact and detailed nature, the so-called "serial number" test.

It is also interesting to note the American Law Institute's "1962 Official Text with Comments" published by the American Law Institute and the National Conference of Commissioners on Uniform State Law under Section 9-110 has

exactly the same statement as that adopted by the Massachusetts Supreme Court (Page 633 Uniform Commercial Code, Official Text with Comments of the ALI and National Conference of Commissioners on Uniform State Laws).

Nearer to home the Oklahoma case of *Central National Bank and Trust Co. of Enid vs. Community Bank and Trust Co. of Enid* (Okla 1974) 528 P2d 710, adopts exactly the same holding, stating that the "serial number" test has been discarded by the UCC and that if the Financing Statement makes possible (by pursuing means which a reasonable person would be put on inquiry to ask about) the identification of the thing covered by the Financing Statement it will not be fatally defective.

In the case of *Yantze Brothers Co. vs. D.E.H. Sierra, Inc.*, 108 Ga.App. 875, 134 SE2d 828, the Court said that merely stating an incorrect serial number would not vitiate the contract if the key to identity of the property is there.

\* \* \*

A person of ordinary prudence would have found out from such lines of inquiry as the date given in the mortgage would naturally suggest to his mind and additionally any further information actually possessed by the claimants at the time of their transaction which would have led an

ordinary man to believe that he was dealing with the mortgaged property or would ordinarily have led him to further inquiry \* \* \*.

Under Code Section 9-110 [Utah's 70A-9-110] the description of the property is not required to be specific and under 9-208 [Utah's 70A-9-208] the debtor has means of obtaining from the secured party the statement of both the amount owing and the correct identification of the collateral.

*Girard (supra)* holds that the Uniform Commercial Code has:

Removed the necessity of listing by serial number the property used as collateral in a security agreement.

Of substantial interest in the Massachusetts case of *Still Associates, Inc., vs. Murphy* is the holding that:

When the error is not on its face sufficiently serious to invalidate the Financing Statement, it appears proper to us to require the party seeking to invalidate it under 9-402(5) [Utah's 70A-8-402(5)] to make some showing of actual prejudice.

Of particular interest is the separate opinion of Justice Crockett in the very recent decision of *Melville vs. Salt Lake County*, 536 P2d 133 including the footnote citing *Miller vs. Salt Lake City*, 7 U2d 300, 410 P2d 764 to the effect that anyone who has actual notice and suffered



no disadvantage cannot complaint of defects in the notice.

C O N C L U S I O N

We respectfully submit that the foregoing cases adequately demonstrate the clear error of the Trial Court in holding the Financing Statement fatally defective. The difficulty is that he has not only ruled against the Bank as far as its security interest goes, but has also left the necessity to try a protracted case on the question of damages, liability for which is absent if the correct rule is followed.

We respectfully submit that the Court should reverse the ruling of the Trial Court and permit First State Bank to retain its possession of the security which it has lawfully taken into custody for the purpose of realizing upon its statutory security interest.

Respectfully submitted,

Ken Chamberlain  
Olsen & Chamberlain  
76 South Main Street  
Richfield, Utah 84701

*Attorneys for Defendant-  
Appellant*